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Title Smithy Farm, Elton 

Type Cottage 

Date Produced 20 Feb 2024 

Internal Reference E26P 

1840 Owner Lord Crewe 

1840 Occupier Kester Kettle 

Tithe Map Apportionments 158a, 158, 170 

1840 Area 6 Acres, 1 Rood, 30 Perches 
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By the time of the 1840 tithe map, the occupier of Smithy Farm was Kester Kettle and this was confirmed 

in the 1841 census a year later. As with virtually the whole of the township of Elton, he was a tenant of 

Lord John Crewe. Also in the house was his wife Rebecca, six children and 2 labourers.  

 

 

 

 



 
 

Kester Kettle originally came from Stockport and lived in Elton for some time in the 1830’s (where he had 

relatives) until the mid 1850’s where he was a farmer but also supplemented his income by running a 

public house on the same premises known as “The White Hart Inn”.  

 

National Archives 1851 census 

 

Electors Roll, 1843 

 

Crewe Estate Account Books 1846-1955 Cheshire Archives DCR-59-2 

 

Kester first appeared on the electors roll in 1837 and moved over the township boundary into Moston in 

1855 after the lease expired and he took over the tenancy of Watch Lane Farm. At that stage he 

transferred the public house licence to his son though this arrangement didn’t seem to last long and the 

licence was not renewed in 1860. The consequence of the historic lifehold lease expiring and a new “rack2 

rent being introduced was an increase from 10 shillings to forty one pounds annual rent. 



 
 

 

Crewe Estate Account Books 1846-1955 Cheshire Archives DCR-59-2 

 

 

 
Source : Cheshire Observer 17th March 1855 

 

 
Source : Cheshire Observer 29th September 1860 

 

Kester Kettle died on 4th December 1882 at Watch Lane Farm in Moston and in his will he left his interest in 

eleven properties to his four surviving children) Of these properties, 3 were in Ettiley Heath, 2 in Elton and 

6 at Wheelock. 

In 1861, Kester’s son John was still at the property and still described as a publican and farmer. The farming 

enterprise was by then somewhat more substantial with John farming 24 acres. Whether John’s public 

house licence had been renewed or he was working in another public house is unclear.  

Either way in 1861 as a widower after his wife died, he moved to Elworth to live with his sister’s family and 

he died there some 10 years later. 

 

Source : National Archives 1861 census 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
Source : Crewe Estate Account Books 1856-1873 

 
After John Kettle 
moved out, there 
was a short lived 
tenancy to George 
Harrison and when 
he moved on in 
1870, John Broad 
moved in.  
 
Soon after, he 
expanded the 
property further by 
taking on the “Broad 
Butts” field, plot 271 
on the Tithe Map. 
On the 1871 census 
he was recorded as 
farming 9.5 acres 
which arises from 
this additional lease. 

 

 

Source : National Archives 1871 census 

 

George Harrison moved to the 
property in 1862 with a 
reduced rent from £41 to £24 
per year. It can be seen from 
the first edition OS map that 
by then Hall Lane had been 
straightened and linked 
creating “4 Lane Ends” In all 
probability, this rent reduction 
coincided with the building of 
the new road 

 

 
 

 

 



 
 

 

1875 OS Map 1st  Edition 

It was from John Broad’s trade that the property got its current name “Smithy Farm” as although not 

mentioned in the 1871 census, John Broad was the son of William Broad the village blacksmith at 

Occleston Green.  

In 1861 John was recorded as an apprentice blacksmith, no doubt under the guidance of his father and 

come the 1881 census he was noted as a blacksmith in Elton (The other Elton Smithy being found on Booth 

Lane next to the Fox Inn) 

 

Source : National Archives 1881 census 

 

Source : National Archives 1891 census 

John Broad continued at Smithy Farm til the turn of the century and then he moved to Warmingham. 

Perhaps he was inspired by the previous use of Smithy Farm as he took over as landlord of the Bear’s Paw 

public house in Warmingham wher ehe spent the last 25 years of his life. With John Broad moving to 

Warmingham, Elton was in need of a need Blacksmith to serve all the farms in the area and it was to be 



 
 

Herbert Lancaster who stepped into the role. Like John Broad, Herbert was the son of a blacksmith, this 

time James Lancaster from Sproston Green 

 

Source : National Archives 1901 census 

 

Source : National Archives 1911 census 

Next to move in was the newly married Thomas Lovatt and his wife though his stay was short lived as four 

years later the Crewe estate was sold and I guess he simply didn’t have the resourses to purchase the 

property so he moved the short distance down the road to Longfold where he spent the rest of his life until 

he died in 1960. Thomas and Florence only had one child Wilfred who they outlived after he died in Italy 

during hostilities in Italy. 

Unlike his immediate predecessors, Thomas was not a blacksmith so from the census returns, it would 

appear that the property was used as a smithy for about forty years. 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Source : Ordnance Survey Map 3rd Edition 1910 

 
 

 
Source : Crewe Estate Sale Particulars 1915 



 
 

So, as mentioned, The Crewe Estate was put up for sale in 1915 as a result of diminishing yields from 

agricultural property and Lord Hungerford Crewe spending much less of his time in Crewe. It is of interest 

to note that in the sales particulars, there was still a reference to a blacksmiths shop so perhaps Messrs 

Lovatt and Boston were subletting part of the premises? If not, then blacksmithing activity discontinued in 

the first decade of the 20th century. 

At the sale, the property was knocked down at £470 to Arthur Boston a bricklayer from Sandbach who took 

up residence and stayed there for about 18 years before selling to a farmer, Charles Hancock in the mid 

1930s, probably 1935 after his wife died. Arthur lived out his days in Wimboldsley. 

Charles himself was a farmer at Brook Farm on the otherside of Clay Lane with a need for a new home 

after the farmhouse at Brook Farm was demolished due to salt subsidence damage. 

 

Source: National Archives 1921 census – Smithy Farm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Chronological List of Owners & Occupiers 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

   


